
 

               

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes                                       Page 1                                               October 5, 2016 

Office of Board of Selectmen 
143 Main Street, P.O. Box 310, Belmont, New Hampshire 03220-0310 

Telephone: (603) 267-8300  Fax: (603) 267-8327 

 

 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes 

 

October 5, 2016 

 

Corner Meeting House 

 

 

 

 Chairman Mooney called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m., also present was Selectman 

Jon Pike, Town Administrator Jeanne Beaudin, Administrative Assistant Cary Lagace, Fire 

Captain Mike Newhall, Fire Chief Ken Erikson, Deputy Fire Chief Beattie, Public Works 

Director Jim Fortin, Library Trustees Diana Johnson and Mary Charnley, Librarian Eileen 

Gilbert, Building Inspector Steve Paquin, Parks & Recreation Director Janet Breton. Selectman 

Cormier was absent. 

 

Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Budget Review 

Fire Department 
 

Chief Erikson began with a review of statistics for Belmont over the past 5 years 

Chairman Mooney asked what type of coverage is provided to Canterbury, Captain Newhall 

explained that they average 25-30 times a year that they are called to Canterbury. Canterbury 

pays the Town $5,000 plus the patient is billed for services provided. Chief Erikson indicated 

that he would provide updated reports annually. Additionally they have done 16 building 

preplans which provide valuable information regarding commercial buildings in the community 

if an emergency happened at a specific location. The information such as red flag issues like 

hazardous materials, etc. is shared with mutual aid so all parties have this important information. 

Chief commented that he has been very happy with Captain Newhall since the reorganization of 

the department and a lot has been accomplished in a short period of time. They have begun 

training together; Laconia and Belmont with firefighter specialized pump training which they 

received good feedback from firefighters; as well they are including students too. Additionally 

with joint drills at the burn building. They are rebuilding the call company and currently have 4 

call firefighters that have completed the process and will officially be presented to the Board at 

their next meeting. They also have 2 more call firefighters that are in the hiring process, Chief 

explained that the reliability of call firefighters is sporadic and they hope to improve that. Chief 

noted that he has done summaries of area departments and bench marking is important; he is a 

data guy and is always aware of the statistics of similar towns. He added that the department is 

fully staffed and is getting busy. They aren’t sure why; whether it’s an aging population or more 

people with insurance. 

 

Chief Erikson advised the Board that he has completed the community needs assessment 

that they had discussed and he will get a copy to the Board. He reviewed with the Board that fire 

water is not accessible in the majority of the town so tankers and other water resource apparatus 

must be used in these areas. Routes 140 & 106 split the town into quarter, the goal in the future 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 2 October 5, 2016 

would be to have 3 firefighters per shift which would allow for a tanker at all fires. In looking at 

Route 106 there are significant buildings without fire protection; and fire water stops at Shooters 

on Route 3. Selectman Pike commented; so if we provide water they will come; Chief expressed 

that if we provide water, there would build more significant buildings. Right now buildings have 

to be built with firewalls and such because the water resources are not there to build bigger better 

protected buildings. There was discussion regarding some residential buildings being required to 

install fire suppression systems because of their local to a water source. Chief noted that the 

firefighters need to be at the top of their game all the time and their daily training has improved. 

 

Chief explained to the Board that his budget is made up of averages based on previous 

budgets; he has looked at the last three years. Overtime is up at $108,000, call firefighter pay has 

remained at $21,000 and they are working on utilizing the call company differently. Telephone 

budget is down due to Captain Newhall’s effort to drop cell bill. Contracts has increased due to 

the contract with the City of Laconia. Chief explained that the training expense has come down 

but they still have a firefighter in paramedic school and would like to increase the line back to 

$5,000. Operating Equipment line has increased to $23,000 for the purchase of an ATV, with the 

WOW Trail open they would need it to access as the Argo is good for the woods but not on the 

trail. Selectman Pike expressed that he thought he was told at the grand opening that a pickup 

could access. Chief commented that he doesn’t believe so but they will look at it further as there 

are areas that are narrow. Selectman Pike indicated that he isn’t’ opposed to the ATV but isn’t in 

favor of it either. Chief went on to explain that the ATV could be good also when they can’t get 

bigger vehicles in certain areas; the Argo is great for brush fires, but an ATV is good for power 

lines; woods trails, etc. and they are more versatile. It was noted that the cost is $15,000 with an 

offset from the special revenue account. The increase in the protective gear line is to cover the 

cost of a bunker gear washer and dryer. The current unit is not functioning, and the grant for a 

new unit was rejected. It was noted that bunker gear cannot be washed in standard machines and 

must be washed following training and attendance at a fire because of the carcinogens and toxins 

that remain in the gear following these activities. They will apply again for the grant but it won’t 

be awarded for 3-4 months, they should know by town meeting. The Belmont gear is now being 

washed in Laconia. It was noted that the Ambulance Billing Fees has increased to $17,000 and is 

currently in a deficit because although they are making the Town more money it is costing more. 

The change to this company has been a good decision, they are getting a great return and are far 

better to work with.  

 

There was a brief discussion of the proposed renovations to the kitchen and bath at the 

firehouse and TA Beaudin indicated that although the attorney indicated that the special revenue 

fund couldn’t be used to offset the cost she will be looking into it further.  It was noted that the 

kitchen and bath are pretty beaten up and the renovation will be a great moral boost as the 

kitchen area is a focal point of the building. 

 

It was noted that EMS revenue is approximately $20,000 a month. Chairman Mooney 

expressed thanks to the Fire Department for being easy to work with through the union negations 

and for bringing forth figures that could be dealt with and being very fair. It was noted that the 

Fire Department budget is up 2% overall and most of the increase is in areas that they have no 

control over with  Chief Erikson highlighting that the ATV and washer and dryer make up the 

majority of the increase. Chairman Mooney asked Chief Erikson to look further into the access to 

the trail; Chief asked that they not just focus on the trail as the ATV can be used for many 

different applications.  

 

Chairman Mooney expressed thanks to Mike Newhall noting that since he came on as 

Captain they have heard many positive things and it’s huge. She added that it used to be like that 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 3 October 5, 2016 

and now it is coming back and they appreciate it. Chief Erikson added that a lot has been done in 

2 months versus the past and he has learned the people don’t care who the Chief is they just want 

to know that someone is going to show up when they need help. Selectman Pike added every 

building needs a father figure and Mike has taken that role and done a great job. Chief added that 

he has seen a lot of pride in the community. Mike Newhall thanked everyone for support. And 

added that the calendar of community events at the station is huge. 

 

Public Works 
 

Jim Fortin explained to the Board that the salary adjustments have had an impact, but for 

the most part his requested figures are back to normal following increases in the prior year in the 

equipment lines. He noted that a new line was added for the expense at the transfer station for 

items collected roadside. There was a brief discussion regarding the open supervisor position, 

with TA Beaudin explaining that there has been minimal response with no applicants fitting the 

successional planning needs. The Board also discussed the option of hiring a seasonal driver in 

case the position is not filled before snowfall. The Board ultimately decided the list the position 

for 1 individual with the guarantee of 25 hours per week.  TA Beaudin noted that the budget 

reflect a reduction due to the 2 positions that have moved to the general government buildings 

budget.  Jim commented that the dust control line is up because the stock pile that they had is 

now gone. Selectman Pike requested that the fuel line item be reduced to $40,000 based on 

usage.  

 

Highway Block Grant 
 

TA Beaudin advised the Board that the State has set Belmont’s Highway Block Grant 

funds at $191,097. 

 

Street Lights 
 

 The Street Lights budget has remained the same and 1 light has been added at Wildlife 

Blvd so there may be an increase related to that. 

 

 There was a brief discussion regarding a light that was to be installed at Jamestown Road, 

TA Beaudin indicated that she would follow up on whether that has been installed or when it will 

be. It was noted that although there isn’t a plan for work in that area the State is doing some 

improvements to that area at this time. 

 

Water 

 

The Board reviewed the Water budget with TA Beaudin noting that it is down slightly 

because of retiring debt service. Selectman Pike commented that he has received complaint of 

sand in the water from a couple of residents. It was noted that if this happens they should run an 

outside spigot to try to eliminate the problem. Selectman Mooney inquired if perhaps it’s time 

for a hydrant flush, Jim Fortin explained that a hydrant flush is scheduled for next week and it 

may help. He added that there are screens in the meters so it shouldn’t be getting by that. Jim 

explained that with the drought conditions there has been some level in the well lost but it isn’t 

significant and the recovery rate hasn’t dropped. TA Beaudin suggested that before the hydrant 

flush takes place DES should be contacted regarding drought protocol, the Board agreed that was 

a good idea.     

 

Sewer 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 4 October 5, 2016 

 

TA Beaudin explained that this budget is also down slightly because of retiring debt 

service.  Selectman Pike inquired if there was enough funds in the budget to maintain the truck; 

Jim Fortin stated as best we can tell. There was a brief discussion regarding the age of the truck 

and its usage and TA Beaudin noted that there is a sewer capital reserve if necessary. Jim Fortin 

noted that additionally it is used by the Water department so there are funds in that budget for 

maintenance as well. It was noted that the next pump replacement would be 10-12 years out and 

funds are being put aside at this time for that anticipated replacement. 

 

Library 
 

 TA Beaudin explained to the Board that the Library came forward with 2 different 

budgets because of proposed changed they wanted to provide both options in case the Board 

didn’t support their preferred budget request. TA Beaudin noted that the budget worksheets 

reflect the preferred budget request. Chairman Mooney asked if they were adding a fulltime 

assistant; Mary clarified that it would be their current part time assistant becoming full time. The 

increase reflects the position becoming full time as of April 1st.  The $18,900 reflects 37 hrs. a 

week from April to December. TA Beaudin explained that the Library submits a quarterly 

invoice to the Town for their general expense line because they pay their own bills from that 

account; phone, audit; workers comp and property liability are paid by the Town. TA Beaudin 

noted that their budget is up $20,000 overall. Chairman Mooney asked what the increase in the 

general expense line is for; Mary explained the funds will be used to update books and for added 

programs. She added that visits are up and they offer almost 75 more programs. The books where 

old and needed to be weeded out and they now need to update materials. They added a new 

computer this month and hope to replace 2 public access computers next year.  Selectman Pike 

commented that he didn’t care for the Libraries they chose to compare Belmont to because 

although their population may be similar, their median income is not. He added that he has heard 

good things about the programs and other changes the Library has made and would pass this 

budget through to budget committee. There was a brief discussion regarding internet usage and 

the possibility of expanding the cameras at Town Hall to provide a view of the front of the 

Library building.  The Board is happy with what they are hearing in the community regarding the 

positive changes the Library has made. 

 

TA Beaudin asked the Trustees if it is their intention to request funds in the Capital 

Reserve account. Diana explained that they haven’t received the full request in years and with 

the need recently to utilize those funds, it would be their intention to include a $25,000 request 

this year. 

  

TA Beaudin advised the Trustees that the Budget Committee will only see the preferred 

request so they should be prepared to give good presentation supporting their request. 

 

Building Inspection 
 

Steve Paquin was present to review his budget request with the Board. He noted a couple 

of items that have increased beginning with office expense of 2700 to upgrade his 4 drawer file 

cabinets to 5 drawer cabinets. Chairman Mooney suggested he look into recycle the 4 drawer 

cabinets to another department. He noted that he is out of flat file drawer space as well but will 

try scanning the files for electronic storage to see if that’s an option for the future. Additionally 

his training line is up because of continuing education needed to maintain his certifications. He 

noted that the majority of the training is in the Boston area.  Steve advised the Board that he has 

increased his professional services line in order to try to avoid a request for additional staff. He 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 5 October 5, 2016 

just isn’t able to get everything done in 40 hours and believes that he can contract with someone 

certified to do inspections for 10 hours a week at $18 per hour and rather than specific hours 

utilize them on an as needed basis. TA Beaudin noted that the vehicle expense is for a lease 

purchase of a new vehicle under a 3yr lease at $9,000 a year. It was noted that the lease vehicle 

will be the same as what the Police Department will be getting without all the bells and whistles.  

 

Parks & Recreation 
 

Janet Breton explained to the Board that her budget doesn’t have much change in it with 

the exception of the summer camp cost. She added that the summer camp cost will be an 

additional $13,000 for 2 extra weeks. There’s an increase to park maintenance to repair the 

tennis courts as they are cracking around the poles. The program coordinator line needs to be 

increased back to where it was and everything else is pretty level. Janet advised the Board that 

the skate park is in bad shape and the concrete is cracked and crumbling, and is looking really 

bad. She asked the Board if they want to fix it; she added that she would like to see it as green 

space. Selectman Pike commented that he thinks it can go and suggested that the Town do the 

removal to save money. Janet asked if the fencing around it could be removed at the same time. 

Janet explained that they are getting more families utilizing the area, and the park attendant has 

worked out well and the people like it. TA Beaudin explained that she just authorized the 

upgrade to electrical panel at park; Janet asked if it can be moved out of where it is. TA Beaudin 

suggested that there be an increase to the maintenance budget to cover loam, seeding, etc. 

Selectman Pike agreed to increase the line to $2,500. TA Beaudin discussed that she would meet 

with Jim now for work to be done in the spring.   

 

Selectman Pike expressed that he doesn’t like the beach control; Janet asked if he was 

referring to the gatekeeper and noted that the position was only budgeted for the weekend, 3hrs a 

day.  Selectman Pike added that he had several visits and there were people there that didn’t have 

stickers and in addition there was one day he went when a lifeguard was there alone and he 

doesn’t think that should be. Janet stated that her policy is written that no one should ever be 

there alone and she would check with staff as to what may have happened to cause that. Janet 

explained that staffing has been very difficult and has even raised to rate of pay, but it’s a huge 

responsibility. There was discussion regarding trying to find a retired individual that may want to 

help out in that capacity as well as was discussed the option for meter maid type person to issue 

tickets when vehicles don’t have the proper sticker. Another added challenge at the beach is the 

trail parking lot if they decide to park there and try to use the beach.   

 

There was a brief discussion regarding the addition of maintenance staff this summer to 

try to keep up with the added maintenance at the beach and TA Beaudin indicated that she would 

speak to Allen to see if they can get back down to the beach this fall the address some of the 

overgrown shrubs that Janet has noted as a concern. 

 

 The meeting adjourned at 6:31 p.m. 

 

            

       Ruth Mooney, Chairman 

 

            

       Ronald Cormier, Vice Chairman 

 

            

       Jon Pike, Selectman 


